

League of Women Voters of Minnesota Records

Copyright Notice:

This material may be protected by copyright law (U.S. Code, Title 17). Researchers are liable for any infringement. For more information, visit www.mnhs.org/copyright.

000 000

CONSTITUTION

For

MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

ARTICLE I.

NAME

The name of this organization shall be the Minnesota League of Women Voters and this organization shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis in Hennepin County, Minnesota but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the State of Minnesota.

ARTICLE II

AIM

The aim of this League shall be to complete the enfranchisement of women and to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

ARTICLE III

POLICY

THIS league as an organization shall have no political party affiliations. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Membership of Minnesota League of Women Voters shall consist of organizations and of individuals.

Section 2. An organization may become a member by official endorsement of the aims of the League of Women

Voters and by payment of such annual dues as shall be authorized by the by-laws. Delegates from organizations shall be such as are authorized by the by-laws.

Section 3. An individual may become a member by signing an application for membership, subscribing to the aims of the League and by paying such annual dues as shall be authorized by the by-laws.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

Section 1. The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a president, two Vice-presidents at large, ten vice-presidents, (one from each Congressional District in the State), a recording Secretary, a corresponding secretary, a treasurer and six directors. These officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Section 2. The general officers together with the chairmen of standing committees shall constitute an executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate five of its members to act as an executive committee.

Section 3. The president, the corresponding secretary six vice-presidents, and three directors shall be elected alternately with the treasurer, recording secretary, six vice-presidents and three directors. The term of office shall be two years, No officers except the treasurer shall serve more than two terms in the same office. At the first election the treasurer, recording secretary, five vice-presidents and three directors shall be elected for one year.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS

Section 1. The annual convention shall be held at a place within the state of Minnesota to be designated by the Executive Board at such time as shall be designated by the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENTS

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by to-thirds vote, previous notice having been given.

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I

MEET INGS

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held during February or March of each year. The time of meeting during these months shall be fixed by the Executive Board.

Section 2- The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the president or three members thereof.

ARTICLE II

section 1. The ten vice-presidents shall constitute

a Nominating Committee which shall present the names of two candidates for each office. Other nominations shall be made by a group of (10) (25) who shall send in a petition in writing.

Section 2. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system. A majority shall elect.

ARTICLE III.

Representation.

The voting body shall consist of the Executive Board, individuals holding direct membership, also the president and three delegates from each affiliated club of ten members. For each ten members after the first ten, each affiliated Club shall be entitled to one additional delegate.

ARTICLE IV

No dues shall be required of individual members.

The annual dues of affiliated organizations shall be five dollars.

These dues shall become due and payable to the League Treasurer

for the following year at the close of the annual meeting.

ARTICLE V

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Roberts Rules of Order. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

ARTICLE VI

COMMITTEES

Section 1. There shall be the following standing

committees: American Citizenship, Protection of Women in Industry, Child Welfare, Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygeine, Unification of Laws Concerning the Civil Status of Women, Food Supply and Demand, Research. The chairmen of these committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each bi-annual meeting.

Section 2. There shall be an advisory committee of twenty-five members appointed by the executive Board who shall be called together from time to time by the President for advise on matters of general importance to the organization.

Section 3. There shall be an honorary president to be elected at the annual meeting. Other committees may be appointed by the executive board.

ARTICLE VII.

VACANCIES.

The executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

ARTICLE VIII

QUORUM

Seven members of the executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

ARTICLE IX

PUBLIC AUDITOR

Section 1. All accounts of the treasurer shall be audited by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. This Auditor shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.

ARTICLE X.

At all meetings of this organization the procedure shall be according to Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

ARTICLE XI

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended by filing notice of amendment with the recording secretary of the state organization not less than thirty days before the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered and appending notice of amendment to the call for the meeting.

Section 2. A vote of two-thirds of the members present shall be necessary to amend the by-laws.

-2-ARTICLE V OFFICERS Section 1. The officers of (designate State) League of Women Voters shall be a -Chairman Vice Chairmen (designate number) Recording Secretary Corresponding Secretary
Directors (designate number) There shall be an Executive Committee. (This Section 2. committee shall be created in the manner desired by each State League) Section 3. The Chairman, or Board of Officers, of the (designate State) League of Women Voters shall appoint a Chairman for each Committee corresponding to the Standing Committees authorized by the National League of Women Voters. All such State Chairman of committees to be members of the National Committees. The method of selecting State members for these State Committees shall be left to the initiative of the State Leagues. ARTICLE VI ELECTIONS An annual election should be held. (Each State League shall determine its method of elections) ARTICLE V11 ANNUAL CONVENTIONS An annual convention shall be held. (The basis of representation shall be determined by each State League) ARTICLE V111 AMENDMENTS This Constitution may be amended. (Each State League shall determine the form of amendments to its Constitution) BY-LAW 1 The National League of Women Voters authorized the following eight Standing Committees: American Citizenship 2. Protection of Women in Industry Child Welfare 3. Improvements in Election Laws and Methods 4. 5. Social Hygiene Unification of Laws concerning the Civil Status of Women Food Supply and Demand 8. Research

-3-BY-LAWS ARTICLE I MEETINGS Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held during February or March of each year. The time of meeting during these months shall be fixed by the Executive Board. Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof. ARTICLE II Section 1. The ten Vice-Presidents shall constitute a Nominating Committee which shall present the names of two candidates for each office. Other nominations shall be made by a group of (10) (25) who shall send in a petition in writing. Section 2. Elections shell be by the Australian ballct system. A majority shall elect. ARTICLE III REPRESENTATION The voting body shall consist of the Executive Board, individuals holding direct membership, also the President and three delegates from each affiliated club of ten members. For each ten members after the first ten, each affiliated club shall be entitled to one additional delegate. ARTICLE IV DUES No dues shall be required of individual members. The annual dues of affiliated organizations shall be five dollars. These dues shall become due and payable to the League Treasurer for the following year at the close of the annual meeting. ARTICLE V DUTIES OF CFFICERS The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules

-4of Order. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board. ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES Section 1. There shall be the following Standing Committees American Citizenship, Protection of Women in Industry, Child Welfare, Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygiene, Unification of Laws Concerning the Civil Status of Women, Food Supply and Demand, Research. The Chairmen of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each bi-ennial meeting. Section 2. There shall be an Advisory Committee of twentyfive members appointed by the Executive Board who shall be called together from time to time by the President for advice on matters of general importance to the organization. Section 3. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board. ARTICLE VII TACANCIES The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year. ARTICLE VIII QUORUM Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting. ARTICLE IX PUBLIC AUDITOR All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited by a public

-000-

First adopted CONSTITUTION For MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS ARTICLE I NAME The name of this organization shall be the Minnesota League of Women Voters and this organization shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis in Hennepin County, Minnesota but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the State of Minnesota. ARTICLE II AIM The aim of this League shall be to complete the enfranchisement of women and to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government. ARTICLE III POLICY This league as an organization shall have no political party affiliations. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice. ARTICLE IV MEMBERSHIP Section 1. Membership of Minnesota League of Women Voters shall consist of organizations and of individuals. Section 2. An organization may become a member by official epdorsement of the aims of the League of Women Voters and by payment of such annual dues as shall be authorized by the by-laws. Delegates from organizations shall be such as are authorized by the by-laws. Section 3. An individual may become a member by signing an application for membership, subscribing to the aims of the League and by paying such annual dues as shall be authorized by the by-lews.

-2-ARTICLE V OFFICERS Section 1. The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at large, ten Vice-Presidents, (one from each Congressional District in the State,) a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. These officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws. Section 2. The General Officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate five of its members to act as an Executive Committee. Section 3. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, six Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be two years. No officers except the Treasurer shall serve more than two terms in the same office. At the first election the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, five Vice-Presidents and three Directors shall be elected for one year. ARTICLE VI MEETINGS Section 1. The annual convention shall be held at a place within the State of Minnesota to be designated by the Executive Board at such time as shall be designated by the by-laws. Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws. ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by two-thirds vote; previous notice having been given.

First CONSTITUTION -1919-1920

Minnesota League of Women Voters

ARTICLE 1

NAME

The name of this organization shall be the Minnesota

League of Women Voters and this organization shall be
auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its
location shall be at the city of Minneapolis in Hennepin

County, Minnesota but may be changed by the Executive Board
to any other city in the State of Minnesota.

ARTICLE 11

. AIM

The aim of this League shall be to complete the enfranchisement of women and to increase the effectiveness
of women's votes in furthering better government.

ARTICLE 111

POLICY

This league as an organization shall have no political party affiliations. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

ARTICLE 1V

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Membership of Minnesota League of Women Voters shall consist of organizations and of individuals.

Section 2. An organization may become a member by official endorsement of the aims of the League of Women Voters and by payment of such annual dues as shall be

authorized by the by-laws. Delegates from organizations shall be such as are authorized by the by-laws.

Section 3. An individual may become a member by signing an application for membership, subscribing to the aims of the League and by paying such annual dues as shall be authorized by the by-laws.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

Section 1. The officers of the Minnesota League of
Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at
large, ten Vice-Presidents, (one from each Congressional
District in the State,) a Recording Secretary, A Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. These officers
shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Section 2. The General Officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute an Executive
Board which shall transact the general business of the
organization subject to its approval. The Board shall
designate five of its members to act as an Executive Committee.

Section 3. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, six

Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice
Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be

two years. No officers except the Treasurer shall serve

more than two terms in the same office. At the first election

the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, five Vice-Presidents and

three Directors shall be elected for one year.

CONSTITUTION (con't)

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS

Section 1. The annual convention shall be held at a place within the state of Minnesota to be designated by the Executive Board at such time as shall be designated by the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENTS

This constitutuion may be amended at any annual meeting by two-thirds vote; previous notice having been given.

BY-LAWS

Article 1

MEETINGS

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held during
February or March of each year. The time of meeting
during these months shall be fixed by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

ARTICLE 11

Section 1. The ten Vice-presidents shall constitute

a Nominating Committee which shall present the names of two candidates for each office. Other nominations shall be made by a group of (10) (25) who shall send in a petition in writing.

Section 2. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system. A mojority shall elect.

ARTICLE 111

REPRESENTATION

The voting body shall consist of the Executive Board, individuals holding direct membership, also the Presient and three delegates from each affiliated club of ten members. For each ten members after the first ten, each affiliated club shall be entitled to one additional delegate.

ARTICLE 1V

DUES

No dues shall be required of individual members. The annual dues of affiliated organizations shall be five dollars. These dues shall become due and payable to the League Treasurer for the following year at the close of the annual meeting.

ARTICLE V

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

CONSTITUTION (con't)

ARTICLE VI

COMMITTEES

Section 1. There shall be the following Standing
Committees: American Citizenship, Protection of Women in
Industry, Child Welfare, Improvement in Election Laws
and Methods, Social Hygiene, Unification of Laws Concerning the Civil Status of Women, Food Supply and Demand, and
Research. The Chairmen of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each bi-ennial
meeting.

Section 2. There shall be an Advisory Committee of twenty-five members appointed by the Executive Board who whall be called together from time to time by the President for advice on matters of general importance to the organization.

Section 3. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

ARTICLE VII

VACANCIES

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

ARTICLE VILL

QUORUM

Seven member of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall con-

stitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

ARTICLE 1X

PUBLIC AUDITOR

All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited by a public auditor who whall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. This auditor shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.

ARTICLE X

At all meetings of this organization the procedure shall be according to Roberts Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

ARTICLE X1.

Section 1. These by-laws may be amended by filing notice of amendment with the Recording Secretary of the State organization not less than thirty days before the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered and appending notice of amendment to the call for the meeting.

Section 2. A vote of two-thirds of the members present shall be necessary to amend the by-laws.

Article VII COMMITTEES.

Section 1. There shall be the following Standing Committees: American Citizenship, Protection of Women in Industry, Child Welfare, Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygiene and Public Health, Uniform Laws concerning Women, Food Supply and Demand, and Research. The Chairmen of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

Article VIII. VACANCIES.

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

Article IX. QUORUM.

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

Article X. RULES OF ORDER.

All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

Article XI.
AMENDMENTS.

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at any annual meeting, previous notice having been given to all district and downty chairmen.

o f

THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS.
(Adopted December 1920)

Article 1.

NAME

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

Article II. OBJECT

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

Article III.
POLICY

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV. MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Section 3. Each district or sub-division, by action of its local Board, shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

Article V. OFFICERS.

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at large, ten Vice-Presidents who shall be the chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Article VI. EXECUTIVE BOARD.

The officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate five of its members to act as an Executive Committee, who shall transact business in the interim of Board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the Board.

Article VII.
MEETINGS.

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held amoually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

Article VIII.
AMENDMENTS.

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, previous motice having been given.

Article I. MEETINGS.

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

Article II. ELECTIONS.

Section 1. The ten District Vice-Fresidents shall constitute a Nominating Committee which shall present the names of candidates for each office except for district Vice-Presidents. The names of two candidates, whenever possible, shall be presented for each office. Other nominations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members.

Section 2. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, six Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be two years. At the first election the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors shall be elected for one year.

Section 3. The Vice-President for each Congressional District shall be elected by the District previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the state meeting.

Section 4. Whenever any District fails to make due provision for such election, the Vice-President for that district shall be elected at the annual meeting by the delegates from the District.

Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system.

Article III. REPRESENTATION

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each County to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairmen of standing committees, and delegates.

Article IV.

No dues shall be required of individual members.

Article V. BUDGET.

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article VI. DUTIES OF OFFICERS.

- Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.
- Section 2. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.
- Section 3. All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. The auditor's fee shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.
- Section 4. When any county shall fail to provide for the election of its own chairman, the Vice-President from that District shall have power to appoint a chairman for that county.

CONSTITUTION

OF

THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS (Adopted December 1920)

Article 1

NAME

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

Article II

OBJECT

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

Article III

POLICY

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Article IV (cont)

Section 3. Each district or sub-division, by action of its local Board, shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

Article V

OFFICERS

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at large, ten Vice-Presidents who shall be the chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Article VI

EXECUTIVE BOARD

The Officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute and Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate five of its members to act as an ExecutiveCommittee, who shall transact business in the interim of Board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the Board.

ArticleVII

MEETINGS

Sectionl. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-

Article VII (cont)

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

Article VIII

AMENDMENTS

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, previous notice having been given.

BY-LAWS

Article I

MEETINGS

Section. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

Article II

ELECTIONS

Section 1. The ten District Vice-Presidents shall constitute a Nominating Committee which shall present the names of candidates for each office except for district Vice-Presidents. The names of two candidates, whenever possible, shall be presented for each office. Other nom-

inations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members.

Section 2. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, six Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be two years. At the first election the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors shall be elected for one year.

Section 3. The Vice-President for each Congressional District shall be elected by the District previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the state meeting.

Section 4. Whenever any District fails to make due provision for such election, the Vice-President for that district shall be elected at the annual meeting by the delegates from the District.

Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system.

Article III

REPRESENTATION

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each county to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairmen of standing committees, and delegates.

Article IV

DUES

No dues shall be required of individual members.

Article V

BUDGET

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article VI

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 2. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

Section 3. All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. The auditor's fee shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.

Section 4. When any county shall fail to provide for the election of its own chairman, the Vice-President from that District shall have power to appoint a chairman for that county.

Article VII

COMMITTEES

Section 1. There shall be the following Standing Committees: American Citizenship, Protection of Women in Industry, Child Welfare, Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygiene and Public Health, Uniform Laws concerning Women, Food Supply and Demand, and Research. The Chairmen of these Committees shall be

appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

Article VIII

VACANCIES

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

Article IX

QUORUM

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

Article X

RULES OF ORDER

All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

Article XI

AMENDMENTS

These by-laws may be amendmed by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at any annual meeting, previous notice having been given to all district and county chairmen.

CONSTITUTION

of

THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

Article I.

Name

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxilliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

Article II.

Object

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

Article III.

Policy

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV.

Membership.

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Section 3. Each district or sub-division, by action of its local Board, shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

Article V.

Officers

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at large, ten Vice-Presidents who shall be the chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Article VI.

Executive Board.

The officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate five of its members to act as an Executive Committee, who shall transact business in the interim of Board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the Board.

Article VII.

Meetings.

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually.

Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

Article VIII.

Amendments.

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, previous notice having been given.

Article I.

Meetings.

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings.

Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

Article II.

Elections.

Section 1. The ten District Vice-Presidents shall constitute a

Nominating Committee which shall present the names of candidates for each office except for district Vice-Presidents. Whenever possible the names of two candidates shall be presented for each office. Other nominations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members.

Section 2. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, sim Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be two years. At the first election the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors shall be elected for one year.

Section 3. The Vice-President for each Congressional District shall be elected by the District previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the state meeting.

Section 4. Whenever any District fails to make due provision for such election, the Vice-President for that district shall be elected at

the annual meeting by the delegates from the District.

Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system.

Article III.

Representation.

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each county to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairmen of standing committees, and delegates.

Article IV.

Dues.

No dues shall be required of individual members.

Article V.

Budget

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article Vi.

Duties of Officers.

Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 2. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

Section 3. All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. The auditor's fee shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women.

Section 4. When any county shall fail to provide for the election of its own chairman, the Vice-President from that District shall have power to

appoint a chairman for that county.

Article VII.

Committees.

Section 1. There shall be the following Standing Committees:

American Citizenship, Protection of Women in Industry, Child Welfare,

Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygiene and Public Health,

Uniform Laws concerning Women, Food Supply and Demand, and Research. The

Chairmen of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board

at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

Article VIII.

Vacancies

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

Article IX.

Quorum

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of Business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

Article X.

Rules of Order

All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

Article XI.

Amendments.

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of those present and

THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

Article I.

Name Name

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

Article II.

Object.

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

Article III.

Policy

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV.

Membership

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

- Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Article V.

Officers

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a president, three vice-presidents at large, ten vice-presidents who shall be chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a secretary, a treasurer, and six directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-lews.

Article VI.

Executive Board

The officers together with the chairmen of departments and standing committees, shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The board shall designate seven of its members to act as an executive committee, who shall transact business in the interim of board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or ac any action of the board.

Article VII.

Meetings

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually.

Other meetings shall be such as are designated by in the by-laws.

Article VIII.

Amendments

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a twothirds vote, provided at least one month's notice of the subject
matter of the amendment shall have been given in writing to the members of the Executive Board.

of the first should be to the not be set of the south of the south of the

of prophenical to the standard for the standard of the standard of the

Article I.

Meetings

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings.

Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

Article II.

Elections

Section 1. The ten district vice-presidents shall constitute a nominating committeewhich shall present the names of candidates for each office except for district vice-president. One of the members of the nominating committee shall be designated as chairman by the executive committee. When-ever possible the names of two candidates shall be presented for each office. Other nominations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members.

Section 2. The president, second vice-president at large, third vicepresident at large and the five vice-presidents for the even numbered congressional districts and three directors shall be elected at the annual
meeting ecourring in the odd numbered years. The first vice-president at
large, the treasurer, the secretary and five vice-presidents for the edd
numbered congressional districts, and three directors shall be elected at
the annual meeting occurring in the even numbered years. The term of office
shall be two years. At the 1 9 2 4 election a third vice-president shall be
elected for one year.

Section 3. The Vice-President for each congressional district shall be elected by the district previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the state meeting.

Section 4. Whenever any district fails to make due provision for

such election, the vice-president for that district shall be elected at the annual meeting by the delegates from the district.

Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system.

Article III.

Representation

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each local league to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairmen of standing committees, and delegates.

Article IV.

Dues

Section 1. No dues shall be required of individual members.

Section 2. Each local league by action of its board shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

Article V.

Budget

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article VI.

Duties of Officers

Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 2. The treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

Section 3. All accounts of the treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting.

The auditor's fee shall be paid from the becasury of the League of Women Voters.

Section 4. The district chairman shall have power to appoint county

- chairmen to assist her in extending organization in the district.

Article VII.

Committees

Section 1. There shall be departments of Efficiency in Government and International Cooperation to Prevent War and the following standing committees: Child Welfare, Legal Status of Women, Living Costs, Social Hygiene and Public Health, Education, Protection of Women in Industry, and Law Enforcement. The chairmen of these departments and committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

Article VIII.

Vacancies

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

Article IX.

Quorum

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

Article X.

Rules of Order

All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

Article XI.

Amendments

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at any annual meeting, previous notice of the subject matter of the

affeliate vent

FILE COPY

of

THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

Article I NAME

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

> Article II OBJECT

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government. See Out II Die

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV MEMBER SHIP

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Section 3. Each district or sub-division, by action of its local Board, shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

> Article V OFFICERS

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents at large, ten Vice-Presidents who shall be the chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a Recording Secretary, a Corresponding Secretary, a Treasurer and six Directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

> Article VI EXECUTIVE BOARD

appents and The Officers together with the Chairmen of Standing Committees shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The Board shall designate rive of its members to act as an Executive Committee, who shall transact business in the interim of Board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the Board.

Article VII MEETINGS

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

> article VIII AMENDLENTS

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, previous notice having been given.

BY-LAWS Article 1 MEETINGS Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board. Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof. Article 11 ELECTIONS Section 1. The ten District Vice-Presidents shall constitute a Nominating committee which shall present the names of candidates for ech office except for district Vice-Presidents Whenever possible the names of two candidates shall be presented for each office. Other nominations may be made by aywritten petition from any group of twenty-five or more members. Section 2. The President, the Corresponding Secretary, six Vice-Presidents, and three Directors shall be elected alternately with the Treasure, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors. The term of office shall be two years. (At the first election the Treasurer, Recording Secretary, six Vice-Presidents and three Directors shall be elected fr one year Section 3. The Vice-President for each Congressional District shall be elected (by the District previous to the annual meeting, but the election must ? be confirmed at the state meeting. Section 4. Whenever any District fails to make due provision for such election, the Vice-President for that district shall be elected at the annual meeting by the delegates from the District. Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system. Article 111 REFESENTATION

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each county to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairmen of standing committees, and delegates.

Article 1V

No dues shall be required of individual members.

Article V BUDGET

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article V1 DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 2. The Treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on order of the Executive Board.

Section 3. All accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report uppn his findings at the annual meeting. The auditor's fee shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.

Soction 4. Then any county shall fail to provide for the election of its own chairman, the Vice-President from that District shall have power to appoint a chairman for that county.

> Article V11 COMMITTEES

Don't grand a Section 1. There shall be the following Standing Committees: American Citizenship, Protection of Tomen in Industry, Child Telfare, Improvement in Election Laws and Methods, Social Hygiene and Public Health, Uniform Laws Concerning Women, Food Supply and Demand, and Research. The Chairmen of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board. V

Article VIII VACANCIES

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

> Article 1X QUORUM

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

> Article X RULES OF ORDER

All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws.

> Article X1 AMENDMENTS

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at any annual meeting, previous notice having been given to all district and county chairmon. member of the tate 12 Ey. Bd

CONSTITUTION

of

FILE COPY

THE MINNES OTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

Article I.

Name

This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auxiliary to the National League of Women Voters. Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the state of Minnesota.

Article II.

Object

The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government.

Article III.

Policy

This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice.

Article IV.

Membership

Section 1. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member by signing an application for membership and subscribing to the aims of the League.

Section 2. Membership in any branch of the League of Women Voters shall constitute membership in the State League.

Article V.

Officers

The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a president, three vice-presidents at large, ten vice-presidents who shall be chairmen of the ten congressional districts in the state, a secretary, a treasurer, and

six directors. The officers shall be elected as provided by the by-laws.

Article VI.

Executive Board

The officers together with the chairmen of departments and standing committees, shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The board shall designate seven of its members to act as an executive committee, who shall transact business in the interim of board meetings, provided that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the board.

Article VII.

Meetings

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws.

Article VIII.

Amendments

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, provided at least one month's notice of the subject matter of the amendment shall have been given in writing to the members of the Executive Board.

Article I.

Meetings

Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1st and December 15th of each year, time of such meeting to be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly meetings.

Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof.

Article II.

Elections

Section 1. The ten district vice-presidents shall constitute a nominating committee which shall present the names of candidates for each office except for district vice-president. The chairman of the nominating committee shall be appointed by the executive committee. Whenever possible the names of two candidates shall be presented for each office. Other nominations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members.

Section 2. The president, second vice-president at large, third vicepresident at large and the five vice-presidents for the even numbered congressional districts and three directors shall be elected at the annual
meeting occurring in the odd numbered years. The first vice-president at
large, the treasurer, the secretary and five vice-presidents for the odd
numbered congressional districts, and three directors shall be elected at
the annual meeting occurring in the even numbered years. The term of office
shall be two years. At the 1 9 2 4 election a third vice-president shall be
elected for one year.

section 3. The Vice-President for each congressional district shall be elected by the district previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the state meeting.

Section 4. Whenever any district fails to make due provision for such election, the vice-president for that district shall be elected at the annual meeting by the delegates from the district.

Section 5. Elections shall be by the Australian ballot system.

Article III.

Representation

Section 1. The Executive Board shall fix the number of delegates for each local League to the annual meeting.

Section 2. The voting body shall consist of the officers, chairman of standing committees, and delegates.

Article IV.

Dues

Section 1. No dues shall be required of individual members.

Section 2. Each local League by action of its board shall have power to establish sustaining memberships for which dues may be required.

Article V.

Budget

The Executive Board shall present a budget for the ensuing year to the annual meeting for its adoption.

Article VI.

Duties of Officers

Section 1. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in Robert's Rules of Order.

Section 2. The treasurer shall give a bond of at least \$1000, the cost of the bond to be paid from the treasury. She shall pay bills only on

order of the Executive Board.

Section 3. All accounts of the treasurer shall be audited annually by a public auditor who shall report upon his findings at the annual meeting. The auditor's fee shall be paid from the treasury of the League of Women Voters.

Section 4. The district chairman shall have power to appoint county chairmen to assist her in extending organization in the district.

Article VII.

Committees

Section 1. There shall be departments of Efficiency in Government and International Cooperation to Prevent War and the following standing committees: Child Welfare, Legal Status of Women, Living Costs, Social Bygiene and Public Health, Education, Protection of Women in Industry, and Law Enforcement. The chairmen of these departments and committees shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting.

Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board.

Article VIII.

Vacancies

The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vacancies that shall occur during the year.

Article IX.

Quorum

Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting.

Article X.

Rules of Order

All meetings of this organisation shall be governed by Robert's Rules of

Order unless covered by this constitution and by-laws. Article XI. Amendments These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at eny annual meeting, previous notice of the subject matter of the smendment having been given to the members of the Executive Board.

(As revised by 1927 Convention) (As revised by 1929 Convention) FILE COPY CONSTITUTION THE MINNESOTA LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS Article I Name This organization shall be called the Minnesota League of Women Voters and shall be auziliary to the National League of Women Its location shall be at the city of Minneapolis, Minnesota, but may be changed by the Executive Board to any other city in the State of Minnesota. Article II Object The object of this League shall be to increase the effectiveness of women's votes in furthering better government. Article III Policy This League, as an organization, shall be strictly unpartisan. Its officers and members are free to join the party of their choice. Article IV Membership & Duew -Section 1. The membership of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall consist of affiliated local Leagues and their members; and of members at large who shall endorse the purpose and policy of the League and pay such annual dues as shall be prescribed by the Executive Board. Section 2. Any woman citizen of Minnesota may become a member of an affiliated local League by subscribing to the aims of the League of Women Voters and paying the annual dues prescribed by the local League.

ARTICLE V Officers The officers of the Minnesota League of Women Voters shall be a President, three vice-presidents at large, a district chairman from each congressional district in the state, a secretary, a treasurer, and six directors. The officers shall be elected as provided in the by-laws. ARTICLE VI Executive Board. The officers together with the chairmen of departments and standing committees shall constitute an Executive Board which shall transact the general business of the organization subject to its approval. The board shall designate seven of its members to act as an executive committee, who shall transact business in the interim of board meetings, providing that nothing shall be done contrary to the policy adopted at the annual meeting or to any action of the board. ARTICLE VII Meetings The annual meeting shall be held at such place within the state of Minnesota as shall be designated by the Executive Board and at such time as is provided for in the by-laws. Meetings of the Executive Board shall be held annually. Section 2. Other meetings shall be such as are designated in the by-laws. ARTICLE VIII Amendments This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting by a two-thirds vote, provided at least one month's notice of the subject matter of the amendment shall have been given in writing to the members of the Executive Board.

-3-BY - LAWS Article I Meetings Section 1. The annual meeting shall be held between October 1 and December 15 of each year, time of such meetings to be determined by the Executive Board. Section 2. The Executive Board shall hold regular monthly Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the President or three members thereof. Article II Elections Section 1. A nominating committee consisting of one representative from each congressional district shall be appointed annually by the executive board and shall present at the annual meeting the names of candidates for each office, to be filled at said meeting. Whenever possible the names of two candidates for each office to be filled shall be presented. Other nominations may be made by a written petition from any group of twenty-five or more members. Section 2. The president, second vice-president at large, third vice-president at large and the chairman from each of the efen numbered congressional districts and three directors shall be elected at the annual meeting occurring in the odd numbered years. first vice-president at large, the treasurer, the secretary and the chairman from each of the odd numbered congressional districts, and three directors shall be elected at the annual meeting occurring in the even numbered years. The term of office shall be two years. Section 3. The chairman for each congressional district shall be elected by the district previous to the annual meeting, but the election must be confirmed at the next ensuing meeting of the state League.

Article VI Committees Section 1. There shall be departments of Efficiency in Government, International Cooperation to Prevent War and Public Welfare in Government and its following standing committees: Child Welfare, Legal Status of Women, Living Costs, Social Hygiene and Public Health, Education, Protection of Women in Industry, and The Chairman of these departments and committees Law Enforcement . shall be appointed by the Executive Board at the close of each annual meeting. Section 2. Other committees may be appointed by the Executive Board. Article VII Vacancies The Executive Board shall have power to fill all vanancies that shall occur during the year. Article VIII Quorum Seven members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Thirty members of the state organization shall constitute a quorum for an annual meeting. Article IX Sales of Order All meetings of this organization shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order unless covered by this Constitution and By-Laws.